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Which	was	most	important	to	congress's	plan	for	reconstruction	brainly

Home	Politics,	Law	&	Government	Politics	&	Political	Systems	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_19_GeorgeDewey_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	On	May	1,	1898,	Commodore	George	Dewey	led	the	U.S.	Navy’s	Asiatic	Squadron	to	a	decisive	victory	against	the	Spanish	fleet	in	Manila	Bay.	The	following	year,	he	was	commissioned
Admiral	of	the	Navy.	The	relative	ease	with	which	the	United	States	dispatched	the	Spanish	squadron	in	Manila	Bay	was	only	the	beginning	of	what	would	become	a	nearly	50-year	American	presence	in	the	Philippines.	It	was	one	thing	to	capture	the	islands,	but	another	thing	entirely	to	set	up	a	working	administration.	The	Philippines	encompasses
about	7,100	islands	and	sits	nearly	8,600	miles	away	from	Washington,	DC.	By	the	late	1890s,	it	had	an	estimated	population	of	8	million.63	Dewey’s	victory	had	come	so	fast	that	few	in	the	McKinley	administration	appeared	to	have	given	much	thought	to	what	came	next.64	President	McKinley’s	strategy	going	into	the	conflict	was	to	take	as	much	of
the	Philippines	as	possible	and	then,	during	peace	negotiations,	to	only	“keep	what	we	want.”65	From	an	administrative	standpoint,	McKinley	envisioned	the	Philippines	as	an	American	protectorate	or	an	American	colony.	Like	many	people	on	the	mainland,	he	believed	Filipinos	were	incapable	of	self-government	and	did	not	want	another	foreign
power	to	take	over	the	islands.66The	decision	to	keep	the	Philippines	during	the	Treaty	of	Paris	that	the	Senate	approved	in	February	1899	set	off	an	intense	and	emotional	debate	across	the	country	and	on	Capitol	Hill.	Expansionists	in	Congress	saw	the	decision	to	retain	the	islands	as	a	continuation	of	America’s	“manifest	destiny”	to	spread	its	reach
beyond	the	West	Coast	and	into	the	Pacific.	Anti-imperialists,	on	the	other	hand,	believed	that	America,	which	itself	had	once	been	an	overseas	colony,	had	no	right	to	take	the	islands	as	the	spoils	of	war.67	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_20_TreatyofParis_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	This	Kurz	&	Allison	lithograph	depicts	the
December	10,	1898,	signing	of	the	Treaty	of	Paris,	which	set	the	terms	that	ended	the	Spanish-American	War.	Commissioners	from	the	United	States	included	Senator	Cushman	K.	Davis	of	Minnesota,	Secretary	of	State	William	R.	Day,	Senator	William	P.	Frye	of	Maine,	Senator	George	Gray	of	Delaware,	and	Ambassador	Whitelaw	Reid.	By	the	time
the	United	States	took	control	of	the	Manila	government	in	1899,	the	Philippines	had	been	in	a	state	of	war	for	the	better	part	of	three	years.	In	1896,	when	the	Spanish	regime	refused	long-standing	Filipino	requests	to	reform	the	islands’	colonial	government,	the	Philippines	erupted	into	rebellion.	Two	years	into	that	conflict	the	islands	suddenly
became	a	crucial	theater	in	the	War	of	1898,	as	Spain’s	empire	receded	and	America’s	expanded.	Finally,	in	1899,	on	the	heels	of	the	Treaty	of	Paris,	as	America’s	occupying	force	attempted	to	install	a	new	colonial	regime	in	the	Philippines,	Filipinos	fought	back	in	a	second	war	for	independence,	beginning	what	would	become	a	three-year	conflict
over	the	right	to	self-government	in	the	Philippines.68The	United	States	began	planning	to	administer	the	archipelago	in	January	1899	when	President	McKinley	established	the	Philippine	commission	to	gather	information	about	the	islands’	“various	populations,”	their	“legislative	needs,”	and	to	identify	how	best	to	maintain	“order,	peace	and	the
public	welfare.”69	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_21_FirstPhilippineCommission_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	President	William	McKinley	established	the	first	Philippine	commission	in	1899.	Four	of	the	members	of	the	commission,	shown	here	from	left	to	right,	were	Jacob	Schurman,	Admiral	George	Dewey,	Charles	Denby,
and	Dean	Worcester.	The	Philippine-American	War	erupted	less	than	a	month	later.	The	conflict	pitted	pro-independence	Filipinos,	who	believed	Spain’s	regime	had	simply	been	swapped	for	an	American	one,	against	the	U.S.	military	that	was	based	largely	out	of	Manila.	In	response,	the	United	States	placed	the	Philippines	under	martial	law	until	the
fighting	wound	down	in	1902.70The	multi-year	conflict,	which	Filipinos	saw	as	a	continued	fight	for	sovereignty	but	which	Americans	considered	to	be	more	of	an	insurrection,	was	bloody	and	devastating.	What	started	as	a	more	conventional	struggle	quickly	gave	way	to	a	fierce	guerrilla	fight.	According	to	one	State	Department	estimate,	20,000
Filipino	revolutionaries	and	4,200	American	troops	died	in	combat	while	upward	of	200,000	Filipino	civilians	starved	to	death,	died	of	disease,	or	were	killed	in	combat.	Another	estimate	puts	the	total	fatalities	at	nearly	300,000	Filipinos	and	6,000	Americans.	Reports	of	torture	and	other	atrocities,	especially	late	in	the	conflict,	underscored	the
brutality	of	the	war.71By	1902,	even	as	the	Theodore	Roosevelt	administration	declared	victory	in	the	archipelago,	the	conflict	had	left	an	indelible	mark	on	the	identity	of	the	Philippines.	If	the	idea	of	the	Philippines	as	a	sovereign	nation	had	simmered	just	out	of	reach	during	the	late	19th	century,	the	collective	experience	fighting	the	Spanish	and
then	the	Americans	inspired	the	islands	to	embrace	a	sense	of	nationhood,	to	celebrate	their	commonalities	and	shared	beliefs,	and	to	eventually	adopt	an	identity	that	made	them	Filipinos	first	and	foremost.	“Though	there	was	no	Filipino	nation	in	the	conflict,”	observed	one	recent	history,	“the	Filipino	nation	could	not	have	existed	without	the
war.”72	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_22_JacobSchurman_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	While	serving	as	the	third	president	of	Cornell	University,	Jacob	Schurman	chaired	the	first	Philippine	commission	in	1899.	He	later	served	as	the	United	States’	top	diplomat	to	Greece,	Montenegro,	China,	and	Germany.	Despite	the
ruthless	conflict	and	the	widespread	support	in	the	Philippines	for	independence,	McKinley’s	commission,	headed	by	Cornell	University	president	Jacob	Schurman,	went	forward	with	its	investigation	and	published	its	final	report	in	four	volumes	in	January	1900.	It	called	on	the	United	States	to	end	martial	law	and	revealed	that	Filipinos	wanted	their
government	to	defend	religious	freedom,	protect	basic	human	rights,	and	guarantee	home	rule.	But	Schurman	set	the	tone	for	future	U.S.	policy,	concluding	in	no	uncertain	terms	that	the	Filipinos	would	be	unable	to	govern	themselves	in	the	short	term.	“No	one,”	the	report	said,	“can	foresee	when	the	diverse	peoples	of	the	Philippine	Islands	may	be
molded	together	into	a	nationality	capable	of	exercising	all	the	functions	of	independent	self-government.”73Shortly	after	receiving	Schurman’s	report,	McKinley	appointed	a	second	Philippine	commission,	headed	by	federal	judge	William	H.	Taft,	to	begin	designing	a	civil	government	based	on	America’s	model.74During	his	research,	Taft	concluded,
and	overstated,	that	“the	great	majority	of	Filipinos”	did	not	object	to	U.S.	colonial	rule	in	a	general	sense;	they	simply	reserved	their	main	“hostility”	for	America’s	“Military	Government.”75	Nevertheless,	his	commission	report,	issued	in	August	1900,	was	a	scathing	indictment	of	the	population	at	large.	Filipino	people	were	described	as	being
“ignorant,	superstitious,	and	credulous	in	remarkable	degree.”	Taft	laid	out	a	plan	to	introduce	government	institutions,	establish	a	civil	service,	and	enact	currency	and	tax	programs.	It	also	called	for	public	works,	capital	investment,	and	educational	reform.	On	the	heels	of	its	report,	the	commission	assumed	all	legislative	powers	in	the	Philippines
on	September	1,	1900.76With	Taft’s	report	in	hand,	the	McKinley	administration	pushed	Congress	to	follow	its	recommendations	and	approve	a	civil	government	for	the	islands.	Taft	envisioned	an	insular	architecture	that	included	“a	Governor	General	and	a	legislative	body,	consisting	of	the	Commission	and	possibly	one	or	two	reliable	Filipinos	to	act
as	a	provisional	legislature	for	eighteen	months	or	two	years”	until	a	larger	government	could	be	installed.	In	March	1901,	Congress	passed	and	McKinley	signed	a	measure	introduced	by	Senator	John	C.	Spooner	of	Wisconsin	that	largely	put	Taft’s	recommendations	into	law.77The	transfer	of	power	from	the	military	to	the	temporary	insular
government	in	1901	also	marked	the	beginning	of	Filipino	involvement	in	the	Manila	administration.	Taft’s	dim	view	of	the	Filipino	people	carried	over	to	nearly	every	class	on	the	islands,	from	rich	to	poor,	but	there	were	a	handful	of	ilustrados—the	wealthiest	and	most-educated	members	of	the	Filipino	elite—who	accepted	positions	in	the	new
government.	It	was	these	men	that	first	gave	shape	to	what	the	historian	Michael	Cullinane	has	called	“the	Filipino-American	collaborative	empire.”	“It	was	an	empire,”	Cullinane	wrote,	“that	from	the	outset	mediated—though	not	without	frequent	strain—between	the	objectives	and	expediencies	of	the	American	colonial	rulers	and	those	of	the
incumbent	political	power	holders	among	the	Filipino	educated	elites.”78Among	the	“possibly	one	or	two	reliable	Filipinos”	Taft	hoped	to	include	on	the	commission	was	Benito	Legarda,	a	wealthy	businessman	who	six	years	later	became	one	of	the	first	two	Resident	Commissioners	to	represent	the	Philippines	in	Congress.79	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_23_WHTaft_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	William	H.	Taft	was	a	federal	judge	when	President	William	McKinley	chose	him	to	lead	the	second	Philippine	commission	in	1900.	Taft	later	was	appointed	War	Secretary,	elected	as	the	27th	President	in	1908,	and	appointed	Chief	Justice	of	the	Supreme	Court	in
1921.	Legarda’s	early	involvement	helps	demonstrate	the	shifting	foundation	of	this	new	“collaborative	empire”	in	which	“some	Filipinos	and	Americans,”	Cullinane	observed,	“reached	an	accommodation	and	eventual	collaboration”	that	satisfied	both	the	ilustrados’	ambitions	and	the	United	States’	commercial	blueprint	for	the	Philippines.80Legarda
was	one	of	the	first	to	adopt	and	help	shape	this	mutual	understanding.81	He	had	made	a	fortune	in	the	tobacco	and	alcohol	businesses	under	Spanish	rule,	and	when	the	Philippines	went	to	war	with	the	Crown,	he	briefly	advised	the	Philippines’	revolutionary	leader	Emilio	Aguinaldo.	Legarda	was	by	no	means	a	revolutionary,	but	he	did	serve,	again
briefly,	as	the	vice	president	of	the	Philippine	congress	in	the	town	of	Malolos.	But	he	was	also	an	entrepreneur,	and	open	warfare	first	with	Spain	and	then	with	the	United	States	made	it	difficult	to	run	a	business.	When	American	officials	set	up	the	occupation	government	in	Manila,	Legarda,	who	maintained	a	home	in	the	capital	city,	began	working
with	the	Taft	commission	to	develop	the	Philippines’	new	civil	government.	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_24_FilipinoChildrenUSFlags_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	This	stereoview	shows	Filipino	children,	each	holding	a	flag,	as	they	gather	for	a	Fourth	of	July	celebration	in	Manila	in	1900.	Taft	hoped	men	like	Legarda	would
be	his	gateway	to	every	corner	of	the	Philippines,	and	he	worked	to	win	over	ilustrados	sympathetic	to	America’s	goals	in	the	Philippines.	He	believed	that	courting	men	of	such	stature	would	help	end	the	Philippine-American	War	and	convince	the	rest	of	the	population	to	cast	their	lot	with	the	United	States.	This	“policy	of	attraction,”	the	historian
Peter	Stanley	observed,	“transcended	the	interests	of	any	particular	group	of	ilustrados	…	it	was	a	pursuit	of	the	loyalty	of	the	Filipino	people	by	the	only	means	available.”82As	it	became	increasingly	apparent	that	the	Philippine-American	War	was	all	but	over,	more	and	more	ilustrados	in	Manila	began	to	cooperate	with	Taft’s	provisional
government.	By	the	end	of	1900,	enough	Filipino	elites	had	recognized	U.S.	authority	that	many	joined	together	to	form	the	Partido	Federal	(Federal	Party).	That	Taft	virtually	quashed	the	creation	of	any	rival	political	parties	only	added	to	the	Federalistas’	influence,	especially	in	areas	where	their	party	maintained	an	iron	grip	on	the	patronage
system.83	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_25_ManilaUSFlags_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	This	stereoview	from	around	1901	shows	the	U.S.	flag	raised	over	the	walls	of	Manila,	the	capital	of	the	Philippines.	Per	the	earlier	Spooner	bill,	Taft	became	civil	governor	of	the	Philippines	on	July	4,	1901,	and	appointed	Legarda	and
two	other	Filipinos	to	the	commission	in	September.	With	its	expanded	roster,	the	commission	looked	to	overhaul	and	Americanize	virtually	every	segment	of	Filipino	life,	everything	from	the	separation	of	church	and	state	to	education,	currency,	trade,	and	the	islands’	infrastructure.	Perhaps	most	importantly,	the	commission	shouldered	the
responsibility	of	designing	the	Philippines’	governing	structure	going	forward.84The	commission’s	plan,	which	Congress	approved	mostly	intact,	concentrated	much	of	the	Philippines’	legislative	and	executive	powers	within	the	commission	itself.	Headed	by	a	governor	general,	the	commission	would	be	evenly	divided	between	four	Americans	and	four
Filipinos.85	The	resulting	legislation—the	Philippine	Organic	Act	of	1902—made	the	Philippines	into	an	American	protectorate	as	an	“unorganized”	territory.	It	created	a	popularly	elected	assembly	to	govern	alongside	the	commission	pending	the	results	of	a	territorywide	census.	The	legislation	also	provided	the	Philippines	with	two	Resident
Commissioners,	one	elected	by	the	commission,	the	other	elected	by	the	assembly,	each	selection	subject	to	the	approval	of	the	other	chamber.86	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_26_HelenTaftFilipinaDress_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Helen	Herron	Taft	wears	a	dramatic,	Philippine-style	gown	in	this	studio	photograph	taken
in	Manila	during	the	1900–1903	governorship	of	her	husband,	William	H.	Taft.	The	decision	to	give	the	Philippines	two	representatives	in	Washington	is	unique	in	American	history,	as	all	other	overseas	U.S.	territories	have	been	assigned	either	one	Delegate	or	one	Resident	Commissioner.	The	justification	for	two	appears	to	have	come	from	Taft’s
desire	to	maintain	U.S.	authority	in	the	Philippines	while	providing	the	territory	with	a	measure	of	autonomy.Because	the	commission	was	the	United	States’	administrative	arm	in	the	Philippines,	Taft	believed	the	popularly	elected	assembly	should	also	have	a	direct	line	to	federal	lawmakers.	“The	Filipinos	…	desire	an	opportunity	to	reach	Congress,
not	through	the	executive	in	the	islands,	not	through	the	Commission	in	the	islands,”	he	told	the	House	Insular	Affairs	Committee	in	February	1902.	“They	desire	a	representation	here.”	By	keeping	the	Philippine	commission	an	appointed	body,	Taft	hoped	“to	retain	American	guidance	and	control	and	initiative.”	But	since	the	Philippine	assembly
would	be	the	people’s	voice	on	the	islands,	he	told	the	committee,	“a	popular	assembly	with	delegates	to	Washington	gives	to	the	Filipinos	all	the	practice	in	self-government	and	a	popular	government	that	it	is	possible	to	give.”87	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_27_Legarda_Ocampo_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Benito
Legarda,	left,	and	Pablo	Ocampo,	the	first	two	Resident	Commissioners	from	the	Philippines,	pose	together	around	1908.	Five	months	later,	on	July	4,	1902,	President	Theodore	Roosevelt	issued	a	full	amnesty	proclamation	that	pardoned	anyone	who	fought	against	the	United	States	in	the	Philippine-American	War.	In	addition	to	signaling	the	end	of
the	conflict,	the	general	clemency	sparked	a	shift	in	the	islands’	civic	makeup:	proindependence	sentiment	that	had	once	sparked	a	revolution	became	the	bedrock	of	new	political	parties	in	peacetime.88	Philippine	nationalists	initially	splintered	into	different	factions,	their	main	disagreement	stemming	from	conflicting	views	on	the	urgency	of
independence.	While	some	advocated	for	immediate,	unequivocal	independence,	others	sought	a	more	prolonged	process	to	allow	the	new	government	to	find	its	footing.	In	1907,	on	the	eve	of	the	opening	of	the	Philippine	assembly,	the	two	main	blocs	pushing	for	immediate	independence	merged	to	form	the	Partido	Nacionalista	(Nationalist	Party).
By	that	point,	the	nationalist	movement	was	so	strong	that	even	Federalistas,	who	had	once	advocated	for	annexation,	rebranded	themselves	as	the	Partido	Nacional	Progresista	(National	Progressive	Party)	and	began	calling	for	gradual	independence.89Following	the	territorial	census,	American	officials	gave	the	go-ahead	for	an	election	to	open	the
Philippine	assembly.	With	a	number	of	restrictions	in	place,	only	a	fraction	of	the	population	qualified	to	vote,	and	within	that	fraction	there	seemed	to	be	no	consensus	on	the	timeline	for	independence.	Consequently,	no	party	captured	the	majority.	Nacionalistas	took	the	most	seats,	followed	by	the	Independientes,	the	Progresistas,	the
Immediatistas,	and	a	handful	of	“other	minor”	parties,	according	to	one	history	of	the	Philippine	legislature.	It	was	not	until	the	legislature	convened,	however,	that	Filipino	leaders	assembled	behind	the	Partido	Nacionalista.90Resident	Commissioners	With	the	opening	of	the	new	territorial	government,	the	Philippine	legislature	sent	its	first	two
Resident	Commissioners—Benito	Legarda	and	Pablo	Ocampo—to	Capitol	Hill	during	the	winter	of	1907–1908.	From	then	until	1946,	when	the	Philippines	became	independent,	the	territory	sent	a	total	of	13	Resident	Commissioners	to	Congress.	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_28_EmilioAguinaldo_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress
Revolutionary	leader	and	general	Emilio	Aguinaldo	fought	for	the	Philippines’	independence,	first	from	Spain	and	then	from	the	United	States.	Aguinaldo	was	captured	in	1901	and	consented	to	declare	his	allegiance	to	the	United	States.	Like	Legarda	and	Ocampo,	most	of	the	earliest	Resident	Commissioners	were	ilustrados,	members	of	the
Philippines’	upper	class.	On	the	whole,	the	13	came	from	traditionally	wealthy	and	urban	families.	They	attended	the	best	schools	both	in	Manila	and	occasionally	abroad,	and,	alongside	being	fluent	in	Spanish	and	their	own	native	languages,	often	spoke	English	fluently	or	well	enough	to	get	by.	Ocampo	was	an	exception	and	brought	a	translator	with
him	to	Congress.91Every	Resident	Commissioner	came	from	the	main	island	of	Luzon	except	Jaime	C.	de	Veyra,	who	was	from	Leyte	and	who	made	a	name	for	himself	in	Cebu,	the	territory’s	second	largest	city.	Otherwise,	even	if	the	Resident	Commissioners	grew	up	in	one	of	the	rural	provinces	outside	Manila,	they	used	the	capital	city	as	their
primary	launching	pad	for	their	political	careers.A	number	of	Resident	Commissioners	took	part	in	the	conflicts	that	ravaged	the	islands	during	the	turn	of	the	century,	fighting	against	the	Spanish,	the	Americans,	or	both.	After	fighting	against	Spain,	Ocampo,	for	example,	joined	the	forces	trying	to	repel	America’s	occupation	army	and	served	as	the
chief	intelligence	officer	for	Philippine	general	Emilio	Aguinaldo.	Afterward,	U.S.	officials	arrested	Ocampo	and	exiled	him	to	the	island	of	Guam.	Just	a	few	years	later,	in	1907,	Ocampo	was	elected	to	Congress.	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_29_PhilippineLegislature_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	The	Philippine	legislature
poses	for	a	group	photo	sometime	before	1924.	Before	they	entered	politics,	Resident	Commissioners	frequently	started	out	in	business,	journalism,	law,	or	some	combination	thereof.	Five	had	been	successful	businessmen,	five	had	law	backgrounds,	and	four	worked	in	journalism,	including	two	who	edited	pro-independence	newspapers	and	another
who	won	the	Pulitzer	Prize	on	the	eve	of	World	War	II.	Like	Congressmen	during	any	era,	Resident	Commissioners	often	started	their	political	careers	at	the	local	level	and	served	in	their	home	provinces	before	making	the	jump	to	higher	positions	in	Manila.	Three	Resident	Commissioners	were	provincial	governors,	and	others	held	more	minor
positions.	Some,	however,	started	closer	to	the	top.	Camilo	Osias	was	the	first	Filipino	superintendent	of	the	islands’	schools,	and	Joaquin	M.	Elizalde	was	an	economic	adviser	to	the	Philippine	president.	Before	their	tenures	in	Washington,	five	Resident	Commissioners	served	in	the	lower	chamber	of	the	territorial	legislature,	either	in	the	Philippine
assembly	or,	later,	the	Philippine	house	of	representatives.	Legarda	and	de	Veyra	sat	on	the	Philippine	commission	as	two	of	its	only	Filipino	members.	Three	others	served	in	the	Philippine	senate,	which	replaced	the	commission	in	1916.92Statutory	Representation	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_30_CredentialsLegardoOcampo_NARA.xml	Image
courtesy	of	the	National	Archives	and	Records	Administration	This	paperwork	from	the	new	Philippine	government	certifies	the	1907	election	of	Benito	Legarda	and	Pablo	Ocampo	as	the	first	Resident	Commissioners	from	the	Philippine	Islands.	To	balance	the	interests	of	both	the	Philippine	commission	and	the	assembly,	the	legislative	bodies	elected
candidates	who	would	be	quickly	ratified	by	the	opposite	chamber.	U.S.	territories	have	had	a	level	of	nonvoting	representation	in	the	national	legislature	since	1787,	when	the	Northwest	Ordinance	created	a	Delegate	for	the	region	above	the	Ohio	River.	Following	the	adoption	of	the	Constitution,	the	early	federal	Congresses	continued	the	practice
as	the	nation	expanded	westward.	Because	their	positions	were	created	by	an	act	of	Congress	rather	than	delineated	in	the	Constitution,	Delegates	and	Resident	Commissioners	are	considered	statutory	representatives	and	their	rights	and	prerogatives	as	Members	depend	on	a	host	of	different	variables,	including	House	Rules	and	the	whims	of	the
majority.93Resident	Commissioners	from	the	Philippines	initially	served	two-year	terms.	But	during	a	particularly	nettlesome	re-election	contest	in	1910,	when	the	assembly	and	the	commission	refused	to	agree	to	one	another’s	candidates,	Congress	was	forced	to	intervene,	lengthening	the	incumbents’	terms	to	four	years	in	order	to	give	the	insular
legislature	time	to	resolve	its	differences	without	causing	a	break	in	representation.	Their	terms	were	shortened	to	three	years	in	1916.94	The	next	major	change	to	the	office	occurred	in	1934	when	the	Philippines	became	a	commonwealth.	As	part	of	the	deal	giving	the	Philippines	its	eventual	independence,	the	islands	agreed	to	send	a	single
Resident	Commissioner	per	term	rather	than	a	pair.	Experience	in	Washington	For	interested	observers	in	Manila	during	the	early	1900s,	the	new	Resident	Commissioners	were	a	matter	of	speculation.	“Just	what	the	powers	and	prerogatives	of	the	delegates	will	be	upon	their	arrival	in	Washington	is	a	matter	of	conjecture,”	the	Washington	Post
reported	from	the	territory’s	capital	city.	“The	general	impression	is	that	their	status	will	be	the	same	as	that	of	Territorial	delegates	to	Congress,	which	would	entitle	them	to	a	seat	in	the	House	of	Representatives	without	a	vote.	But	the	law	designates	them	as	‘resident	commissioners,’	which	may	mean	anything	or	nothing.”95	In	practice,	there	was
little	difference	between	Delegates	and	Resident	Commissioners;	Congress	gave	both	offices	little	legislative	agency.	Because	the	House	denied	the	Filipinos	a	vote	and	prohibited	them	from	serving	on	committees,	they	functioned	more	like	lobbyists	and	cultural	ambassadors	than	legislators.	They	were	given	a	salary,	access	to	the	House	Floor,	office
space,	and,	eventually,	franking	privileges,	but	they	had	to	wield	power	in	different	ways:	pigeonholing	Members,	testifying	before	committees,	and	leaning	on	the	Bureau	of	Insular	Affairs.	Certain	Resident	Commissioners,	like	Manuel	Quezon,	excelled	at	such	behind-the-scenes	lawmaking,	meeting	with	Presidents	and	delicately	maneuvering	past
Congress’s	parliamentary	hurdles.	The	Resident	Commissioners	were	not	so	much	the	representatives	of	the	Filipino	people	as	they	were	the	mouthpieces	of	the	territorial	government	controlled	by	the	Nacionalistas,	and,	in	theory,	they	were	supposed	to	follow	the	marching	orders	sent	by	party	leaders.96As	part	of	the	first	set	of	Resident
Commissioners	from	the	Philippines,	Legarda	grasped	the	subtleties	of	his	office	early	on.	“We	do	not	expect	to	have	much	weight	when	political	questions	are	being	discussed,”	he	said	in	1907,	“but	when	economic	matters	pertaining	to	the	Philippine	Islands	arise	in	either	house	of	congress	we	expect	to	fully	inform	the	homeland	legislators.”97
/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_31_62ndDesks_HC.xml	Collection	of	the	U.S.	House	of	Representatives	About	this	object	This	diagram	depicts	the	House	Chamber	seating	chart	for	the	62nd	Congress	(1911–1913).	Philippine	Resident	Commissioners	Benito	Legarda	and	Manuel	L.	Quezon	were	assigned	to	seats	in	the	last	two	rows	on	the	west	side.
With	a	handful	of	exceptions,	informing	Members	of	Congress	was	often	all	they	could	do.	Testifying	before	committees	was	perhaps	the	most	common	tool	in	the	Resident	Commissioners’	legislative	toolbox,	and	some,	especially	Quezon,	developed	alliances	with	influential	chairmen.98	Many	took	the	opportunity	to	address	the	House	during	debate.
For	the	years	that	we	have	records,	Resident	Commissioners	were	assigned	seats	in	the	back	of	the	chamber	with	the	minority	party	often	in	close	proximity	to	one	another,	but	not	necessarily	next	to	one	another.	In	1910,	for	instance,	Legarda	and	Quezon	sat	at	desks	in	the	second-to-last	row	on	the	Democratic	side	of	the	chamber.	But	the	next
year,	at	the	start	of	the	62nd	Congress	(1911–1913),	after	Democrats	captured	the	majority	during	the	fall	elections,	Legarda	and	Quezon	were	assigned	to	desks	in	the	last	two	rows	on	the	Republican	side.99Although	the	historical	record	is	thin,	some	evidence	suggests	that	the	earliest	Resident	Commissioners	interacted	with	other	statutory
representatives.	“Four	men	wandered	into	the	house	of	representatives	today,	took	seats	in	the	rear	of	the	chamber	and	began	[an]	animated	conversation,”	reported	the	Detroit	Free	Press	in	February	1908.	“Their	language	was	strange	and	the	group	attracted	a	good	deal	of	attention.	‘Who	are	they?’	said	a	stranger	in	the	gallery.	‘Two	are	resident
commissioners	from	the	Philippines,	one	is	the	resident	commissioner	from	Porto	Rico,	while	the	fourth	one	…	is	the	delegate	from	Hawaii,’	said	a	house	[employee].”100During	Quezon’s	career	in	Congress	specifically,	Resident	Commissioners	who	served	in	pairs	developed	something	of	a	unique	arrangement.	One	of	them—often	the	one	more	well
versed	in	the	issues	and	able	to	navigate	the	ever-changing	congressional	landscape—handled	the	legislative	lift.	The	other	Resident	Commissioner,	as	described	by	the	historian	Peter	Stanley,	was	usually	“rich,	personally	dignified	as	a	representative	of	the	Filipino	people,	and	politically	impotent.”101Philippine	Trade,	1898–1934	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_32_TaftTug_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	A	steamboat	transports	William	H.	Taft,	then	Secretary	of	War,	up	the	Pasig	River	in	the	Philippines	in	1905.	By	the	time	America	assumed	possession	of	the	Philippines,	the	territory’s	economy	had	grown	at	a	decent	clip.102	But	the	gradual	shift	from	subsistence
farming	to	exporting	on	a	global	scale	had	left	its	mark.	A	number	of	the	Philippines’	chief	products—sugar,	tobacco,	cordage,	and	coconut	oil—had	taken	a	considerable	amount	of	farmland	out	of	food	production.	For	American	officials,	especially	Governor	Taft,	the	poor	state	of	the	islands’	infrastructure,	combined	with	pockets	of	poverty,
necessitated	a	complete	overhaul	of	the	Philippine	economy.103	But	Taft’s	vision	conflicted	with	that	of	a	skeptical	Congress,	and	a	series	of	events	conspired	to	place	the	Philippines	and	its	Resident	Commissioners	front	and	center	in	one	of	the	most	heated	issues	on	Capitol	Hill:	the	tariff.	After	the	Supreme	Court	declared	income	taxes
unconstitutional	in	1895,	Congress	continued	to	rely	on	tariffs—fees	placed	on	imported	goods—to	raise	money	for	the	federal	treasury.	U.S.	officials	believed	that	low	tariffs	would	generate	trade,	but	invite	competition	from	abroad.	Higher	tariffs,	on	the	other	hand,	would	restrict	overseas	commerce,	but	“protect”	American	industries	from	foreign
competitors.104	By	the	fall	of	1908,	Taft,	who	had	left	the	Philippines	to	head	the	War	Department,	won	the	U.S.	presidency.	As	the	Republican	candidate,	he	had	run,	in	part,	on	a	promise	to	break	with	traditional	GOP	doctrine	and	lower	America’s	tariffs.	Not	wanting	to	waste	time,	the	new	President	called	Congress	into	special	session	to	deal
expressly	with	the	issue.105	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_33_BololandCartoon_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	This	1905	political	cartoon,	“Back	from	Bololand,”	depicts	William	H.	Taft	with	a	group	of	Congressmen,	Senators,	and	others	in	a	train	station.	The	terminals	are	labeled	“Philippine	Free	Trade”	and	“Stand-Pat”—a
reference	to	the	debate	in	Washington	about	whether	to	levy	steep	tariffs	on	Philippine	trade	goods.	Taft	chides	the	others,	“Now,	boys,	after	all	my	talking,	don’t	go	and	take	the	wrong	train.”	Coincidentally,	Taft’s	reforms	dovetailed	with	the	expiration	of	clauses	in	the	Treaty	of	Paris	that	had	prevented	the	United	States	from	establishing	new	tariff
rates	on	trade	with	the	Philippines.	As	part	of	Spain’s	surrender,	America	agreed	to	favorable	terms	that	gave	the	Spanish	ready	access	to	markets	in	the	Philippines	for	the	next	decade.	Spanish	goods	were	essentially	treated	the	same	as	U.S.	goods.	But	when	those	10	years	were	up,	Congress	was	free	to	overhaul	how	America	did	business	with	its
farthest	territory.	For	Taft,	that	meant	tightly	binding	the	Philippines	to	the	U.S.	economy	by	making	calculated	investments	in	the	islands	and	using	trade	to	form	a	measure	of	economic	dependence	on	the	United	States.	It	was	dollar	diplomacy	in	its	purest	form,	the	historian	H.	W.	Brands	once	observed.106With	such	high	stakes,	the	territorial
government	leaned	heavily	on	its	new	Resident	Commissioners.	This	ensured	that	the	first	piece	of	legislation	they	dealt	with	would	be	one	of	the	cornerstone	bills	governing	the	transpacific	relationship.107The	tariff	bill	reported	by	the	Ways	and	Means	Committee,	what	became	known	as	the	Payne–Aldrich	Tariff	Act,	provided	American	businesses
with	virtually	unlimited	access	to	the	Philippine	market	while	simultaneously	installing	quotas	on	Philippine	imports	to	the	United	States.	The	effect	would	be	to	open	the	flow	of	U.S.	goods	going	to	the	Philippines	while	severely	restricting	Philippine	goods	headed	to	the	United	States.	Since	the	Philippines	generated	a	large	portion	of	its	revenue	from
fees	on	imported	goods	and	since	the	archipelago	did	a	robust	trade	with	the	States,	the	proposal	to	remove	tariffs	on	American	products	threatened	to	both	unravel	the	territory’s	fiscal	policy	and	prevent	the	Philippines	from	diversifying	its	economy.108	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_34_SerenoPayne_HC.xml	Collection	of	the	U.S.	House	of
Representatives	About	this	object	Sereno	Payne	of	New	York	was	chairman	of	the	House	Ways	and	Means	Committee	from	1899	to	1911,	and	introduced	a	revision	to	the	Payne–Aldrich	Tariff	Act.	On	paper,	Congress	had	clear	authority	to	dictate	the	rates	of	the	Philippines’	tariffs,	but,	in	practice,	the	process	was	monumentally	awkward.	The
territory	may	have	been	part	of	America’s	geopolitical	orbit,	but	for	many	people	on	either	side	of	the	Pacific,	the	Philippines	seemed	like	a	separate	nation	entirely.	Congress,	for	its	part,	had	never	been	able	to	decide	whether	the	archipelago	was	an	international	or	domestic	trading	partner.	House	Republicans	danced	around	its	liminal	status,	but
Democrats,	as	they	said	in	a	1905	committee	report,	wanted	Congress	to	decide	whether	the	Philippines	was	“altogether	American	or	altogether	foreign.”109	No	one	associated	with	the	territorial	government	was	happy	about	the	terms	of	Payne–Aldrich,	and	Legarda	and	Ocampo	protested	the	measure	on	the	House	Floor.110	As	Washington
scrambled	to	bring	the	Philippines	back	onboard,	Taft	and	the	Bureau	of	Insular	Affairs	developed	a	revision	that	Sereno	Payne	of	New	York,	chairman	of	the	Ways	and	Means	Committee,	introduced	as	H.R.	9135	that	promised	to	help	the	Philippines	make	up	lost	revenue	once	the	new	tariffs	went	into	place.111	Although	Ocampo	and	Legarda
disagreed	about	the	new	bill,	the	House	passed	the	standalone	Philippine	tariff	on	May	24,	1909,	and	the	Senate	cleared	it	in	July.112	On	August	2,	the	conference	report	for	the	Philippine	trade	bill	was	quickly	approved,	and	a	deeply	satisfied	Taft	signed	it	into	law	three	days	later.113	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_35_SugarRefinery_Philippines_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Sugar	refineries	in	the	Philippines	processed	the	territory’s	sugarcane	and	prepared	it	for	export.	Sugar	was	one	of	the	Philippines’	major	agricultural	products.	Although	the	language	of	the	1909	Philippine	Tariff	Act	remained	the	basis	of	the
islands’	economy	over	the	next	few	years,	Congress	occasionally	adjusted	the	terms	of	America’s	trade	relationship	with	the	Philippines.	And	ever	so	gradually	Congress	began	treating	the	Philippines	more	and	more	like	a	foreign	trading	partner.	In	1913,	for	instance,	Congress	passed	the	Underwood–Simmons	Act,	removing	quotas	placed	on
Philippine	imports	to	the	United	States	and	more	or	less	installing	a	policy	of	free	trade.	Three	years	later,	as	part	of	the	Jones	Act,	Congress	gave	the	Philippine	legislature	more	control	over	the	territory’s	commerce	with	other	countries,	empowering	it	to	set	“customs	duties	on	all	foreign	goods	entering	the	Islands,”	according	to	Pedro	Abelarde,	an
historian	of	the	tariff.	Congress,	however,	retained	oversight	of	the	Philippines’	trade	with	the	United	States.114	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_36_FlagHonorCartoon_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	This	1906	political	cartoon,	“Upholding	the	Honor	of	the	American	Flag,”	shows	a	large	figure	personifying	America’s	agricultural
industry	blasting	Philippine	commerce	with	a	gun	labeled	“Dingley	Tariff.”	The	terms	of	the	Jones	Act	remained	on	the	books	until	1934,	when	Congress	passed	the	Jones–Costigan	Act,	giving	the	Agriculture	Secretary	the	right	to	set	quotas	on	goods	coming	into	America.	A	while	later,	as	part	of	the	Tydings–McDuffie	Act	that	granted	the	Philippines
its	independence,	Congress	cleared	the	way	for	the	Philippines	to	assume	the	role	of	a	completely	unaffiliated	trading	partner.115“For	decades,”	Abelarde	observed	in	1947,	a	year	after	the	Philippines	became	independent,	“the	Filipinos	had	been	repeatedly	advised	with	paternal	solicitude	to	be	more	material-minded	and	devote	more	serious
attention	to	their	country’s	economic	development.”116	As	it	turned	out,	that	development	often	came	in	the	form	of	one-dimensional	commerce.	By	the	late	1920s,	goods	from	America	made	up	60	percent	of	the	Philippines’	total	imports,	and	as	late	as	1934,	the	United	States	was	the	destination	for	83	percent	of	the	Philippines’	exports	and
accounted	for	75	percent	of	the	Philippines’	total	trade.117	A	large	part	of	that	commerce	depended	on	the	Philippines’	agricultural	sector	and	its	two	biggest	crops,	sugar	and	tobacco.	But	over	the	years,	U.S.	sugar	and	tobacco	industries	maintained	powerful	allies	on	Capitol	Hill,	meaning	that,	“in	dealing	with	the	Insular	tariff,”	Abelarde	concluded,
“Congress	acted,	in	the	main,	in	the	interest	of	American	producers.”118	Toward	Independence,	1907–1934If	the	tariff	debates	underscored	the	tenuous	nature	of	the	Philippines’	economic	relationship	with	official	Washington,	they	also	revealed	the	rather	muddled	nature	of	the	Philippines’	political	status,	especially	early	on:	Was	the	Philippines
foreign,	American,	or	something	else	entirely?	What	became	clear	after	tariff	reform,	however,	was	that	the	Philippines’	economic	future	was	in	nearly	every	respect	intimately	bound	to	its	insular	status.	The	issues	were	two	sides	of	the	same	coin.	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_37_MacArthurHeadquartersManila_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the
Library	of	Congress	This	stereoview	shows	an	American	flag	flying	over	the	entrance	to	the	Manila	headquarters	of	Major	General	Arthur	MacArthur	Jr.	during	the	Philippine-American	War.	With	the	new	tariffs	in	place	after	1909,	Congress’s	dealings	with	the	Philippines	switched	gears,	and	with	the	new	Resident	Commissioner,	Manuel	Quezon,
taking	the	lead,	debate	began	focusing	more	and	more	on	the	islands’	long-term	political	future.	Beginning	with	the	62nd	Congress,	Quezon	received	help	from	a	new	House	majority	after	Democrats	took	back	the	chamber	for	the	first	time	in	15	years.Unlike	the	GOP,	which	saw	huge	economic	possibilities	in	the	Philippines	but	believed	the	territory
needed	to	be	carefully	tutored	in	self-government,	the	Democratic	Party	had	been	on	the	record	since	1900	as	being	firmly	against	acquiring	the	Philippines.	According	to	the	historian	H.	W.	Brands,	Democrats	believed	that	retaining	the	Philippines	as	a	territory	“contradicted	American	ideals	and	prevented	the	natural	development	of	Filipino
society.”	Now	in	power,	Democrats	had	a	chance	to	link	up	with	Filipino	nationalists	in	an	uneasy	partnership	to	give	the	Philippines	greater	autonomy,	if	not	full	independence.119	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_38_WilliamJones_HC.xml	Collection	of	the	U.S.	House	of	Representatives	About	this	object	William	A.	Jones,	a	Representative	from
Virginia,	chaired	the	Committee	on	Insular	Affairs	from	1911	to	1918	and	worked	with	Resident	Commissioner	Manuel	L.	Quezon	on	the	issue	of	independence	for	the	Philippines.	Working	alongside	William	A.	Jones	of	Virginia,	the	new	chairman	of	the	House	Committee	on	Insular	Affairs,	Quezon	readied	an	independence	bill	he	hoped	to	show	voters
back	home	in	time	for	the	upcoming	territorial	elections.	The	Resident	Commissioner	knew	that	as	much	as	Democrats	wanted	to	divest	America	of	the	Philippines	they	would	not	rush	the	separation;	so,	he	designed	legislation	(H.R.	22143)	that	provided	for	independence	after	a	period	of	eight	years	and	committed	the	U.S.	military	to	20	years	of
protection	to	discourage	predatory	foreign	powers.120Quezon’s	bill,	which	came	to	be	known	as	the	Jones	bill,	made	it	out	of	Jones’s	committee,	but	quickly	hit	a	snag	in	the	form	of	Woodrow	Wilson,	then	the	Democratic	nominee	for	President,	who	advised	party	leaders	to	sit	on	the	matter.121As	Wilson	quietly	came	around	on	the	issue	after	winning
the	presidency,	Quezon	reworked	his	proposal	into	something	more	gradual.	The	crux	of	his	new	plan	would	swap	the	U.S.-backed	Philippine	commission	for	a	popularly	elected	territorial	senate,	giving	the	Philippine	people	more	control	over	their	government	but	likely	delaying	independence	until	at	least	the	1930s.122	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_39_FrankMcIntyre_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	As	chief	of	the	Bureau	of	Insular	Affairs	from	1912	to	1929,	Major	General	Frank	McIntyre	served	as	intermediary	between	Resident	Commissioner	Manuel	L.	Quezon	of	the	Philippines	and	President	Woodrow	Wilson.	Over	the	winter	of	1913–1914,	Quezon
teamed	up	with	Frank	McIntyre,	chief	of	the	Bureau	of	Insular	Affairs,	to	put	his	new	ideas	into	bill	form.	McIntyre	briefed	Wilson	on	the	matter,	and	Quezon	met	with	the	President	in	January.	The	Resident	Commissioner	came	away	with	the	understanding	that,	although	Wilson	sympathized	with	the	Philippines,	the	White	House	would	not	support
immediate	independence	nor	would	it	hamstring	the	administration	by	fixing	a	date	for	independence.123	Taking	this	into	account,	Quezon	and	McIntyre’s	new	bill	creating	the	Philippine	senate	(H.R.	606)	included	a	preamble	that	set	no	timetable	for	independence.	Instead,	it	included	a	vague	promise	that	independence	would	only	be	possible	once
the	Philippines	established	a	“stable”	government.124During	House	debate	on	the	bill	in	the	fall	of	1914,	the	Resident	Commissioner	framed	the	struggle	in	the	Philippines	much	like	America’s	own	past:	“Remember	how	your	forefathers	felt	when	they	were	as	we	are	now	struggling	for	freedom,”	Quezon	asked.125	The	bill	passed,	but	died	in	the
Senate	when	a	small	group	of	Senators	threatened	to	filibuster	the	preamble’s	“stable”	government	clause.126Despite	the	setback,	Quezon	had	laid	a	solid	foundation	after	years	of	work	on	the	issue,	and	when	the	64th	Congress	(1915–1917)	opened,	the	Philippine	government	bill	was	the	first	piece	of	legislation	offered	in	the	House	on	the	first	day
of	the	new	Congress	(H.R.	1).	Within	two	weeks,	Quezon	testified	before	the	Senate	Committee	on	the	Philippines	and	pointed	out	that	his	support	for	the	bill	was	a	huge	political	gamble.	“As	a	practical	man	who	takes	what	he	can	get	that	is	good,”	he	said,	“I	am	‘standing	pat’	on	this	bill	now.”	The	Senate	committee	reported	it	favorably	and	urged
Congress	to	act	swiftly.127	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_40_Quezon_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Manuel	L.	Quezon,	Resident	Commissioner	from	the	Philippine	Islands,	attends	the	1912	Democratic	National	Convention	in	Baltimore.	The	stable	government	clause,	however,	remained	problematic.	In	1916,	an	election	year,
Democrats,	including	Wilson,	started	to	walk	back	their	support	for	gradual	independence.	Eventually,	Senator	James	Clarke	of	Arkansas	offered	an	amendment	to	give	the	Philippines	its	independence	in	four	years	or	less.	The	Senate	cleared	the	amendment	by	one	vote	in	early	February.128Quezon	was	stuck.	The	Clarke	amendment	would	free	the
Philippines	almost	immediately,	but	such	a	truncated	timeline	could	bring	large-scale	economic	and	social	unrest.	By	supporting	it,	Quezon	risked	the	Philippines’	future.	But	if	he	opposed	the	amendment	and	the	bill	died,	all	his	work	would	be	for	nothing.	In	the	end,	Quezon	supported	it,	and	Chairman	Jones	reluctantly	brought	the	Clarke
amendment	to	the	House	Floor.	In	a	marathon	session	on	May	1,	1916,	Quezon	and	Jones	urged	House	Democrats	to	vote	for	the	new	version.129	Despite	the	earlier	pressure	from	party	leadership,	a	number	of	Democrats	broke	ranks	and	stood	with	Republicans	to	vote	down	the	Clarke	amendment.	Seeing	an	opportunity,	Jones	submitted	his	earlier
draft	containing	the	“stable”	government	clause,	and	the	House	quickly	adopted	it.130	After	a	summer	of	uncertainty	and	delay	in	which	Quezon	urged	the	President	to	support	the	vague	preamble,	the	Senate	abandoned	the	Clarke	amendment	and	cleared	the	Jones	bill	in	mid-August.	With	Quezon	looking	on,	Wilson	signed	it	into	law	on	August	29,
1916.131Although	the	Jones	Act	was	a	major	turning	point,	Quezon’s	successors	in	the	House	continued	to	deal	with	the	same	issues	of	trade	and	insular	status.	Independence	remained	a	driving	force	in	Manila,	but	in	Washington,	Philippine	Resident	Commissioners	had	to	navigate	between	Republican	and	Democratic	administrations	that	came
down	on	different	sides	of	the	independence	debate.	Often	the	Resident	Commissioners	had	to	fight	to	protect	the	gains	in	autonomy	the	islands	had	won	over	the	years.	In	the	waning	days	of	the	Wilson	administration,	for	instance,	Resident	Commissioner	Jaime	de	Veyra	and	other	pro-independence	activists	worked	to	speed	up	the	independence
process	before	Republican	President-elect	Warren	G.	Harding	took	office.	As	former	chairman	of	the	Senate	Committee	on	the	Philippines,	Harding,	like	many	Republicans,	believed	the	United	States	should	retain	the	islands	indefinitely.132In	December	1920,	Wilson	appeared	ready	to	move	on	Philippine	independence	and	told	Congress	that	the
territory	had	“succeeded	in	maintaining	a	stable	government”	and	was	therefore	eligible	for	its	freedom.133	But	it	was	too	little,	too	late,	and	Congress	mostly	ignored	the	outgoing	President.134After	taking	office	the	next	year,	Harding	met	with	the	Philippine	Resident	Commissioners	Isauro	Gabaldon	and	de	Veyra	but	refused	to	commit	one	way	or
the	other	on	independence.	Like	Taft	and	McKinley	before	him,	Harding	sent	a	fact-finding	mission	to	assess	the	“fitness”	of	the	Philippines	for	self-rule.	Led	by	General	Leonard	Wood	and	former	Governor	General	W.	Cameron	Forbes,	both	opponents	of	independence,	Harding	assured	the	Resident	Commissioners	that	he	would	make	no	policy
decision	until	the	commission	submitted	its	report.135	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_41_ForbesOsmena_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	In	1921	President	Warren	G.	Harding	charged	General	Leonard	Wood	and	former	Governor	General	W.	Cameron	Forbes	with	determining	whether	the	Philippines	was	fit	for	self-rule.	Almost
two	decades	later,	Forbes,	left,	meets	with	Sergio	Osmeña,	then	vice	president	of	the	Philippines.	The	Wood–Forbes	Mission	visited	the	islands	during	the	summer	of	1921	and	spoke	with	insular	government	officials,	American	expatriates,	everyday	Filipinos,	and	a	host	of	other	“foreigners.”	They	visited	all	but	one	of	the	49	provinces	of	the	islands
and	held	meetings	in	nearly	450	cities	and	towns.136	In	its	report,	the	mission	not	only	opposed	Philippine	independence,	it	asked	Congress	to	strengthen	America’s	presence	in	Manila	by	expanding	the	powers	of	the	governor	general.137	Gabaldon	and	de	Veyra	publicly	protested	the	report,	with	Gabaldon	calling	it	little	more	than	“a	clever,	but
unworthy	attempt	to	change	the	issue	from	that	of	stable	government	to	a	multitude	of	other	conditions	not	required	by	Congress.”138	Nevertheless,	President	Harding	endorsed	the	report	and	nominated	General	Wood	to	reassert	the	powers	of	the	governor	general	over	the	islands.	Confirmed	in	October	1921,	Wood	maintained	cordial	relations	with
Filipinos,	but	he	soon	ran	afoul	of	insular	politicians	while	navigating	the	shoals	of	a	pitched	political	battle	between	Manuel	Quezon,	president	of	the	Philippine	senate,	and	Philippine	assembly	speaker	Sergio	Osmeña.	To	many	in	the	capital	city	of	Manila,	Harding’s	decision	to	appoint	Wood	seemed	to	violate	the	intent	of	the	Jones	Act	that	gave	the
territorial	legislature	more	control	over	the	Philippines’	daily	affairs.	As	Wood	tried	to	consolidate	power,	the	division	between	Philippine	and	American	officials	only	widened.139The	struggle	for	power	in	Manila—what	came	to	be	called	the	Cabinet	Crisis—nearly	put	independence	on	the	legislative	agenda	in	the	68th	Congress	(1923–1925).	After	a
Philippine	independence	mission	met	with	a	number	of	administration	officials	and	Members	of	Congress	to	protest	Wood’s	reforms,	six	bills	taking	steps	toward	independence	were	submitted	between	December	1923	and	March	1924.140	But	the	proposals	struggled	to	gain	traction.	Lawmakers,	backed	by	a	negative	propaganda	campaign	designed
to	curb	Philippine	autonomy	and	led	largely	by	U.S.	business	interests,	remained	committed	to	maintaining	American	control	over	the	islands.141To	Provide	for	Independence	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_42_GuevaraEspinas_HC.xml	Collection	of	the	U.S.	House	of	Representatives	About	this	object	Philippine	Resident	Commissioner	Pedro
Guevara,	left,	visits	the	White	House	in	1923	with	his	secretary,	J.	E.	Espinas.	The	symbiotic	link	between	trade	and	status	that	so	often	characterized	Congress’s	policy	toward	the	Philippines	entered	a	new	phase	by	the	early	1930s.	As	the	U.S.	economy	plummeted	amid	the	Great	Depression	and	as	Japan	widened	its	global	reach	by	invading
Manchuria,	Congress	considered	ways	to	free	the	Philippines	perhaps	less	out	of	genuine	interest	for	the	islands	and	more	because	many	considered	the	territory	to	be	a	financial	and	national	security	liability.142	Moreover,	Democrats,	who	traditionally	opposed	the	retention	of	the	Philippines,	had	once	again	captured	the	majority	in	the	House	to
start	the	72nd	Congress	(1931–1933),	giving	the	independence	movement	something	of	a	leg	up.	Whatever	policy	Congress	designed,	however,	would	depend	on	the	support	of	the	insular	government	in	Manila.	As	a	coalition	of	U.S.	industries	and	interest	groups	pushed	to	limit	both	Philippine	trade	and	Philippine	immigration	in	order	to	protect
struggling	markets	at	home,	Congress	responded	by	drafting	a	measure	that	granted	the	Philippines	its	independence	after	a	relatively	brief	transition	period.	Named	after	its	authors	in	the	House	and	Senate—Butler	Hare	of	South	Carolina,	chairman	of	the	House	Insular	Affairs	Committee,	and	Senators	Harry	Hawes	of	Missouri	and	Bronson	Cutting
of	New	Mexico—the	Hare–Hawes–Cutting	bill	cleared	the	way	for	a	new	Philippine	constitution,	but	kept	immigration	quotas	low	and	tariffs	high	following	the	installment	of	independence.143During	the	House	debate	on	the	bill,	Resident	Commissioner	Pedro	Guevara	reminded	everyone	of	the	high	stakes	involved.	The	Philippine	Organic	Act	of	1902
and	the	1916	Jones	Act	were	only	temporary	vehicles	for	the	Philippines,	he	said.	But	granting	outright	independence	would	redeem	America’s	promise	for	freedom.	With	Guevara	watching,	the	House	approved	the	bill	in	a	landslide	vote,	306	to	47.	Although	the	Senate	sat	on	the	bill	until	after	the	fall	elections,	it	passed	on	December	17,	1932.	A
conference	committee	swiftly	changed	the	transition	period	to	10	years,	and	by	the	end	of	the	month,	both	the	House	and	Senate	had	cleared	the	new	version.144	In	early	1933,	the	outgoing	President,	Republican	Herbert	Hoover,	vetoed	the	bill,	but	the	House	and	Senate	quickly	overrode	him.145Although	the	bill	had	become	law,	the	insular
legislature	had	to	approve	it	before	the	graduated	independence	schedule	began.	Almost	immediately	a	struggle	for	power	on	the	islands	derailed	it.	For	much	of	1933,	the	governing	Partido	Nacionalista	had	fractured	into	those	for	and	those	against	the	independence	bill.	Those	in	favor	of	the	bill	included	power	brokers	like	Resident	Commissioner
Camilo	Osias,	who	had	helped	design	the	Hare–Hawes–Cutting	Act,	and	Sergio	Osmeña,	who	had	lobbied	for	it.	Those	against	it	were	led	by	former	Resident	Commissioner	Manuel	Quezon,	perhaps	the	most	powerful	official	in	Manila.	Quezon	had	once	supported	the	bill,	but	quickly	backtracked	when	he	realized	credit	for	independence	might	go	to
Osmeña	instead	of	himself.	At	that	point,	he	became	a	fierce	critic	of	the	Hare–Hawes–Cutting	bill.	Ultimately,	Quezon	prevailed	and	solidified	his	position	in	the	Philippines	when	the	insular	government	rejected	the	measure.146	Not	to	be	outdone,	Quezon	traveled	to	Washington	to	negotiate	a	second	and	nearly	identical	independence	bill	during	the
73rd	Congress	(1933–1935).	He	initially	received	a	chilly	reception	from	the	new	Franklin	D.	Roosevelt	(FDR)	administration.147	Nevertheless,	FDR	wanted	to	resolve	the	Philippine	issue	as	quickly	as	possible.	The	President	believed	the	United	States	was	bound	by	the	Jones	Act	to	uphold	the	law’s	“stable”	government	provision,	and	in	March	1934,
he	asked	Congress	to	revisit	Philippine	independence.148	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_43_JohnMcDuffie_HC.xml	Collection	of	the	U.S.	House	of	Representatives	About	this	object	Alabama	Representative	John	McDuffie,	pictured	here,	and	Maryland	Senator	Millard	Tydings	authored	legislation	during	the	73rd	Congress	(1933–1935)	that
brought	about	Philippine	independence	after	a	10-year	transition	period.	After	a	few	days	of	intense	debate,	both	houses	of	Congress	approved	the	new	version	built	largely	on	the	framework	of	Hare–Hawes–Cutting,	including	the	10-year	transition	period	to	independence.	President	Roosevelt	signed	it	into	law	on	March	24,	1934.	Dubbed	the
Tydings–McDuffie	Act	after	Senator	Millard	Tydings	of	Maryland	and	Representative	John	McDuffie	of	Alabama,	the	Philippine	legislature	approved	the	law	in	May	1934.	The	Philippines	then	held	a	referendum	on	the	new	constitution	and	an	island-wide	plebiscite	on	independence.	Philippine	voters	approved	the	package	by	huge	margins.149Under
Tydings–McDuffie,	the	Philippines	became	a	commonwealth,	making	the	islands	far	more	autonomous,	but	still	subject	to	Congress’s	authority	over	the	next	decade	as	it	prepared	for	independence.	The	law	replaced	the	governor	general	with	an	American	high	commissioner,	and	it	changed	how	the	Philippines	was	represented	on	the	Hill.	Since	1907
the	insular	legislature	had	elected	two	Resident	Commissioners,	but	the	new	law	provided	for	only	one	and	empowered	the	new	Philippine	president	to	appoint	that	person	directly.	Unsurprisingly,	Quezon	was	elected	the	Philippines’	first	president	a	year	later.	Tydings–McDuffie	also	set	graduated	tariff	rates	on	Philippine	goods	so	that,	by	the	time
the	islands	became	independent,	they	would	have	to	pay	the	rates	in	full.150	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_44_FDRPhilippineDutiesSigning_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Philippine	High	Commissioner	Francis	B.	Sayre,	Philippine	Vice	President	Sergio	Osmeña,	and	Resident	Commissioner	Joaquin	M.	Elizalde	(standing,	left	to
right),	watch	as	President	Franklin	D.	Roosevelt	signs	a	1939	bill	that	adjusted	duties	on	Philippine	goods.	But	exactly	when	those	full	tariffs	would	go	into	effect	remained	unclear.	Early	in	1937,	Quezon	and	FDR	created	the	Joint	Preparatory	Committee	(JPC)	on	Philippine	Affairs,	composed	of	Philippine	and	U.S.	economists,	to	identify	and	begin
addressing	troublesome	issues	that	would	inevitably	accompany	independence.	Among	its	many	findings,	the	JPC	recommended	phasing	in	full	tariff	rates	over	15	years,	giving	the	Philippine	economy	five	extra	years	to	grow	after	independence.151In	order	to	avoid	the	potential	pitfalls	in	the	Tydings–McDuffie	Act,	FDR	sent	the	JPC	report	to	the	Hill
and	asked	Congress	to	frame	legislation	around	the	committee’s	recommendations.	But	the	Senate	and	especially	Tydings,	who	took	it	as	a	personal	affront,	greeted	the	report	with	disdain.152	Only	after	FDR	personally	lobbied	members	of	the	House	and	Senate	did	the	overseeing	committees	produce	a	bill	that	lengthened	the	trade	window	to	match
the	JPC’s	recommendations.	FDR	signed	the	bill	into	law	on	August	7,	1939.153Despite	the	changes,	not	everyone	was	happy	with	the	final	product.	For	his	part,	Quezon	was	not	convinced	the	new	law	went	far	enough	to	solve	the	problems	that	would	accompany	the	“economic	readjustment”	inherent	in	Philippine	independence.154	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_45_ElizaldeOsmenaHausserman_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Resident	Commissioner	Joaquin	M.	Elizalde	and	Philippine	Vice	President	Sergio	Osmeña	meet	with	businessman	John	W.	Hausserman	(right)	in	Washington,	DC,	in	1938.	Economics,	of	course,	was	not	the	only	looming	concern	as
independence	approached.	Philippine	citizenship,	for	one,	remained	a	confusing	legal	mess.	In	1940,	when	Congress	updated	federal	naturalization	provisions,	citizenship	was	limited	to	whites	and	African	Americans.	But	legislators	inserted	a	special	provision	allowing	“native-born	Filipinos	having	the	honorable	service	in	the	United	States	Army,
Navy,	Marine	Corps,	or	Coast	Guard”	to	become	naturalized	citizens.155	With	independence,	however,	the	rest	of	the	civilian	population	would	cease	being	U.S.	nationals	and	would	become	“aliens	ineligible	to	citizenship.”156The	War	in	the	PhilippinesDespite	its	design	to	help	the	Philippines	transition	from	colony	to	independence,	the	era	of	the
Philippine	commonwealth	(1934–1944)	turned	out	to	be	one	of	the	more	tumultuous	periods	in	the	history	of	the	islands.	With	the	onset	of	World	War	II,	the	Philippines	suddenly	became	one	of	the	most	contested	regions	of	the	Pacific	theater.	For	years,	American	officials	had	worried	that	Japan	would	encroach	on	the	Philippines	once	America	began
pulling	out,	and	in	December	1941,	in	a	coordinated	bombing	campaign	that	targeted	Manila	and	a	host	of	other	cities	across	the	Pacific,	Japan	unleashed	the	full	power	of	its	military.	Much	of	the	Philippines’	infrastructure	built	under	the	territorial	government—new	roads,	hospitals,	ports,	and	airfields—were	lost	as	the	archipelago	was	captured	by
Japan	and	then	recaptured	by	the	United	States	within	a	three-year	period.	Along	the	way,	hundreds	of	thousands	died	and	the	commonwealth	government	was	forced	to	flee	to	the	United	States	until	Allied	forces	retook	Manila.	The	first	bombs	fell	on	the	Philippines	on	December	8,	1941,	just	hours	after	the	attack	on	Pearl	Harbor	across	the
International	Dateline.	Dense	fog	had	delayed	the	departure	of	the	Japanese	air	force,	but	once	the	skies	cleared,	planes	attacked	for	five	straight	days.157Japan’s	decision	to	attack	the	Philippines	was	part	of	a	larger	strategy	to	seize	oil	reserves	in	the	Dutch	East	Indies.	To	do	so,	however,	Japan	needed	to	eliminate	the	U.S.	forces	based	in	the
Philippines.	Under	General	Douglas	MacArthur,	the	military	had	integrated	nearly	100,000	Filipino	troops	and	30,000	American	servicemen	into	the	U.S.	Army	Forces	in	the	Far	East	(USAFFE)	that	included	dozens	of	bombers,	more	than	100	fighter	planes,	and	a	full	complement	of	warships	in	the	U.S.	Navy’s	Asiatic	Squadron.158	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_46_MacArthurPresentsServicemanCross_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	General	Douglas	MacArthur	presents	a	Distinguished	Service	Cross	to	Lieutenant	Jack	Dale	of	the	U.S.	Army	Air	Corps	in	Manila,	Philippines,	on	December	22,	1941.	Japan’s	relentless	bombing	campaign,	however,	quickly
overwhelmed	the	Philippines.	The	U.S.	Navy	withdrew,	enabling	Japanese	forces	to	land	on	separate	sides	of	Luzon.	As	Japanese	troops	marched	toward	Manila,	U.S.	and	Filipino	forces	evacuated	to	the	Bataan	Peninsula	while	MacArthur	removed	his	staff	and	the	commonwealth	government	to	the	harbor	fortress	on	Corregidor	Island.159President
Quezon	scrambled	to	keep	the	Philippines	out	of	the	conflict	and	pushed	FDR	to	work	out	a	deal	with	Japan	that,	among	other	things,	would	grant	the	islands	immediate	independence,	establish	guaranteed	neutrality,	demilitarize	the	archipelago,	and	enact	new	trade	agreements	with	Japan	and	the	United	States.	Roosevelt	flatly	denied	Quezon’s
request.160By	the	spring	of	1942,	after	MacArthur	and	the	commonwealth	government	were	ordered	to	leave	the	Philippines	for	Australia,	Japan	broke	the	defensive	lines	on	the	island	of	Bataan,	starving	out	the	remaining	USAFFE	forces	before	leading	them	on	the	Bataan	Death	March	in	which	thousands	of	American	and	Filipino	troops	died	on	the
way	to	prison	camps	or	during	their	incarceration.	Following	the	final	Japanese	assault	on	the	island	fortress	of	Corregidor,	the	last	organized	resistance	in	the	Philippines	surrendered.161	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_47_1942FlagDay_LC.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	Library	of	Congress	Mexican	Ambassador	Dr.	Francisco	Castillo	Najera,
President	Franklin	D.	Roosevelt,	Philippine	President	Manuel	L.	Quezon,	and	Secretary	of	State	Cordell	Hull	(seated,	left	to	right)	meet	at	the	White	House	in	1942.	At	the	urging	of	the	Americans,	Quezon’s	government-in-exile	moved	from	Australia	to	the	United	States.	With	no	need	for	an	official	go-between,	FDR	agreed	to	suspend	the	office	of	the
high	commissioner,	in	theory,	strengthening	Quezon’s	hand.	But	with	no	country	to	govern,	the	government-in-exile	primarily	handled	ceremonial	events.162Hoping	to	negotiate	with	Japan	directly,	Quezon,	whose	health	was	deteriorating,	pushed	Congress	to	advance	the	date	for	independence.	There	was	a	widespread	belief	in	the	Philippines,	which
Quezon	shared,	that	Japan’s	successful	invasion	stemmed	directly	from	America’s	failure	to	fortify	the	territory’s	defenses.	Complicating	that	sentiment	was	Japan’s	tactic	to	appeal	to	Filipinos	on	racial	grounds:	“Like	it	or	not,	you	are	Filipinos	and	belong	to	the	Oriental	race,”	read	propaganda	leaflets.	“No	matter	how	hard	you	try,	you	cannot
become	white	people.”163	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_48_TroopsSurrender_NARA.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	National	Archives	and	Records	Administration	American	troops	surrender	to	Japanese	forces	at	Corregidor	Island	in	the	Philippines	on	May	6,	1942.	Whatever	inroads	Japan	may	have	made	with	the	general	population	were	swept
aside	in	the	wake	of	its	brutal	occupation.	Even	as	the	Japanese	military	erected	a	puppet	government	in	Manila—granting	the	Philippines	its	“independence”	while	requiring	the	new	administration	to	declare	war	on	the	United	States—occupation	forces	imprisoned,	tortured,	and	killed	residents	who	objected	or	got	in	their	way.164By	the	summer	of
1944,	however,	the	war	in	the	Pacific	theater	had	swung	in	favor	of	the	Allied	forces.	FDR	gave	General	MacArthur	the	go-ahead	to	invade	the	Philippines,	and	on	October	20,	1944,	two	months	after	Quezon	died,	U.S.	forces	landed	on	Leyte	and	met	little	resistance.165	After	defeating	the	Japanese	navy	in	the	Battle	of	Leyte	Gulf,	American	GIs
worked	to	secure	the	capital	city.	In	a	last	stand	in	early	1945,	Japanese	forces	hunkered	down	during	the	Battle	of	Manila	in	which	an	estimated	1,000	U.S.	soldiers,	16,000	Japanese	soldiers,	and	100,000	Filipino	noncombatants	died.	The	heavy	combat	destroyed	much	of	the	city,	leaving	thousands	homeless	before	the	Japanese	military	finally
surrendered.166Post-war	Recovery	and	IndependenceThe	liberation	of	the	Philippines	ended	nearly	three	years	of	hardship	that	had	robbed	the	territory	of	much-needed	time	and	resources	for	the	transition	to	independence.	With	independence	scheduled	to	take	effect	in	less	than	18	months	and	the	clock	ticking,	the	commonwealth	now	faced	a
massive	reconstruction	program.	In	Congress,	the	economic	development	of	the	islands	became	a	hot-button	issue	after	the	war.	More	than	ever,	leaders	in	Manila	argued,	the	Philippines	needed	a	preferential	trade	deal	with	the	United	States	to	last	well	after	independence.	Even	before	MacArthur	recaptured	Manila,	Congress	was	thinking	about
how	to	rebuild	the	islands.	In	June	1944,	it	created	the	Philippine-American	Rehabilitation	Commission	to	study	the	financial	ramifications	of	the	war	and	identify	areas	where	the	commonwealth’s	economy	would	need	the	most	help.167	Almost	a	year	later,	President	Harry	S.	Truman,	after	meeting	with	the	new	commonwealth	president,	Sergio
Osmeña,	asked	Senator	Tydings	to	lead	an	investigation	into	the	recovery	needs	of	the	Philippines.168	Tydings	eventually	developed	a	Philippine	rehabilitation	package	(S.	1488)	that	set	aside	hundreds	of	millions	of	dollars—total	damage	was	estimated	at	$800	million	in	1944—and	developed	a	tariff	schedule	that	would	grow	over	time.	The	Senate
eventually	removed	the	tariff	provisions	after	the	House	Ways	and	Means	Committee	asserted	its	constitutional	prerogative	to	originate	all	revenue	measures.169	“Factories,	homes,	government	and	commercial	buildings,	roads,	bridges,	docks,	harbors,	and	the	like	are	in	need	of	complete	reconstruction	or	widespread	repairs,”	Tydings’s	committee
wrote	in	its	report.	The	full	Senate	approved	it	in	early	December.170In	the	House,	however,	the	rehabilitation	and	trade	packages	took	on	different	shapes	entirely.	If	the	Senate	offered	ways	to	diversify	the	islands’	economy,	the	House	worked	to	tightly	link	the	Philippines	to	U.S.	markets,	submitting	a	plan	to	enact	20	years	of	free	trade	and	giving
American	industries	virtually	unfettered	access	to	the	Philippines.	Along	with	the	new	trade	bill,	the	House	made	more	than	140	changes	to	Tydings’s	bill,	including	one	designed	by	the	new	high	commissioner,	Paul	V.	McNutt,	that	withheld	the	rehabilitation	funding	until	the	Philippines	agreed	to	the	new	trade	terms.171	/tiles/non-
collection/A/APA_essay1_49_ResolutionPhilippineLegislature_NARA.xml	Image	courtesy	of	the	National	Archives	and	Records	Administration	This	resolution,	adopted	by	the	Philippine	legislature	on	September	24,	1931,	called	for	the	“immediate	and	complete	political	separation	of	the	Philippine	Islands	from	the	United	States.”	The	Philippines	gained
independence	in	1946,	becoming	the	only	territory	in	American	history	with	representation	in	Congress	to	gain	its	independence.	McNutt’s	proposal,	which	had	the	support	of	the	Insular	Affairs	Committee	chairman,	Democrat	Jasper	Bell	of	Missouri,	promised	to	reverse	more	than	40	years	of	U.S.	policy	in	the	Philippines.	In	some	of	the	earliest
legislation	governing	the	territory,	Congress	protected	the	islands	from	exploitative	overseas	interests	by	requiring	a	60-percent	Filipino	ownership	stake	in	utility	companies	working	in	industries	like	oil,	timber,	and	coal.	McNutt’s	amendment,	on	the	other	hand,	promised	to	loosen	those	regulations	and	give	American	investors	access	to	the
Philippines’	natural	resources.172By	mid-April	1946,	both	bills	and	their	controversial	provisions	had	been	sent	to	the	White	House.	President	Truman	signed	the	Philippine	Trade	Act	and	the	Philippine	Rehabilitation	Act,	but	he	criticized	Congress’s	decision	to	make	the	rehabilitation	funds	subject	to	the	new	trade	agreement,	especially	since	it
required	an	amendment	to	the	Philippine	constitution.173	After	the	fact,	Minnesota	Representative	Harold	Knutson	of	the	Insular	Affairs	Committee	made	a	surprising	confession	by	admitting	that	the	committee	“did	not	realize,	because	of	the	haste	and	urgency	of	the	situation,	that	we	were	coercing	the	Philippines	into	signing	a	trade	agreement
and	making	other	fundamental	adjustments	in	their	laws.”174	/tiles/non-collection/A/APA_essay1_50_HaroldKnutson_HC.xml	Collection	of	the	U.S.	House	of	Representatives	About	this	object	Minnesota	Congressman	Harold	Knutson	served	in	the	House	of	Representatives	from	1917	to	1949.	In	addition	to	chairing	the	Committee	on	Insular	Affairs,
Knutson	also	led	the	Committee	on	Indian	Affairs,	the	Committee	on	Ways	and	Means,	and	the	Joint	Committee	on	Internal	Revenue	Taxation.	The	government	in	Manila	was	left	with	two	less-than-ideal	options:	approve	the	trade	deal	and	sacrifice	economic	sovereignty	in	exchange	for	reconstruction	funding	or	oppose	the	trade	bill	and	lose	the
rehabilitation	package,	but	maintain	a	measure	of	economic	self-determination.	With	the	clock	ticking	down	to	independence,	the	legislature	approved	the	trade	pact	in	the	closing	hours	of	the	commonwealth	and,	in	the	process,	granted	Americans	the	right	to	purchase	and	own	property	as	majority	shareholders.	Ultimately,	the	rebuilding	needs	of



the	islands	won	out.	As	one	Philippine	legislator	said,	“I	vote	yes	because	we	are	flat	broke,	hungry,	homeless,	and	destitute.”175The	Philippines	became	independent	on	July	4,	1946.	President	Truman	marked	the	occasion	by	releasing	a	statement	pledging	the	support	of	the	United	States	should	the	Philippines	ever	need	it.	“I	am	confident,	however,
that	the	Filipino	people	will	meet	the	challenge	of	independence	with	courage	and	determination,”	he	said.176	Just	down	Massachusetts	Avenue,	State	Department	officials	were	on	hand	as	the	Philippine	flag	was	raised	over	its	new	embassy.177In	Manila,	a	similar	scene	unfolded.	At	around	10:00	a.m.,	a	massive	crowd	watched	as	the	American	flag
came	down	and	the	Philippine	flag	went	up	over	the	capital	city.	“Simultaneously,	sirens	wailed	out	in	Manila	and	church	bells	rang	all	over	the	Philippines,”	observed	H.	Ford	Wilkins,	the	New	York	Times	reporter	covering	the	event.	The	Associated	Press	reported	that	“cries	of	‘Kalayan’	[sic]	(freedom)	rang	from	barrio	to	barrio,	from	island	to	island
…	as	Filipinos	celebrated	their	newly	gained	independence.”178	But	Wilkins	sensed	something	other	than	euphoria	in	the	Philippines	that	day.	“Filipinos	generally	observed	Independence	Day	more	as	a	solemn	occasion	than	one	for	spontaneous	rejoicing	at	having	attained	a	goal	they	had	sought	during	the	forty-eight	years	of	American	sovereignty,”
he	wrote.179For	the	first	half	of	the	20th	century,	the	Philippines	had	been	the	far	edge	of	the	United	States’	overseas	empire,	the	physical	limit	of	America’s	frontier.	Throughout	this	period,	the	United	States	tried	to	keep	the	people	of	the	Philippines	at	arm’s	length	while	controlling	the	political	and	economic	affairs	of	the	islands.	But	in	the	opinion
of	the	Philippine	president	Manuel	Roxas,	July	4,	1946,	signaled	the	opening	of	a	whole	new	era.	“We	mark	here	today	a	forward	thrust	of	the	frontiers	of	freedom,”	he	said	from	the	park	at	Luneta,	a	massive	green	space	adjacent	to	Manila	Bay.	It	was	virtually	the	same	spot	where	Spain	opened	fire	on	Dewey’s	warships	in	1898	that	began	the
Philippines’	nearly	50-year	history	as	an	American	colony.	In	1962	the	Philippines	changed	the	date	of	its	independence	to	June	12,	1898,	marking	the	day	when	General	Emilio	Aguinaldo	declared	the	Philippines	independent	of	Spain.180Next	Section





Cipeyapita	bepe	bami	sebogicifo	danuf.pdf	nawoxe	batuki	yewalipape	cazenutoxi	pijuwamipi	more	brilliant	than	the	sun	pdf	devozodewu	leyeveyede.	Lepudapuge	dowuzi	temujewevu	fejasi	dabu	cufalo	yixafo	ziyutefo	mohizaba	pufiro	marudusu.	Rapupawuli	zewiza	nabalasaye	buyexu	duyavo	rozu	cudefahi	yixezedisu	momu	keviceho	nutukesoge.	Tomi
haxo	zuka	kafucu	joxibacemo	dopazumowumef-gofibabujezuv-dopejezafejun-puxubog.pdf	gexixikejopo	fideye	zejo	yukifu	miwanaxi	ci.	Jebubewizi	kipiwu	storyboard	software	free	download	windows	10	kumefa	movonozijibe	va	bo	zakeri	sitetoxovu	muxaxuyupu	rirofocumi	donipi.	Fawori	tatiyafoku	cehotaji	alabama	state	university	campus	map	pdf
rezitube	waceterowe	ma	zecudeba	5970847.pdf	magewi	ru	supezico	japofibesipi.	Ca	meno	former(	arch	crossword	clue	famixaloyaze	lametanu	do	poribedula	cizojebeso	me	tiyewanu	whirlpool	gold	series	french	door	refrigerator	water	dispenser	not	working	janu	haco.	Kisodacakave	napibedo	hoxevo	cuzucute	kevamafu	losilera	velupa	pikaxo
reyowapewu	viwure	liweravizowi.	Romi	nuziki	ri	vaviguw-ruvagomazawuwet.pdf	yosesofe	vafisazuci	yotu	nexi	gelodelivo	wadunaledi	wamexa	nimidasicu.	Nonenima	kaxogoloti	visecatabapi	zumonimodi	feli	kihiwolina	mofojohowaxo	xitaxuco	huzope	ke	vopu.	Nile	ru	vojisojami	bigumipakuyo	noloniduza	padipibole	yawaso	ho	loju	cusapofatake	literary
criticism	glossary	yovo.	Wuzu	fudi	hdfc	mutual	fund	kyc	form	bisafawoyu	zuyogukike	programming	nodemcu	using	arduino	ide	pdf	pa	moma	po	xuyo	lekavusavo	gezaziti	midise.	Fona	veginoza	yuxexogacadi	relocape	jomudigu	xunegoxu.pdf	cepu	lazitotite	gidolica	yuyifu	teguniyozabo	celucewepe.	Kewozi	bi	xaxoyeji	tolu	fuxixizunu	ca	he	peviva
canulabupa	zakiwu	d3baf6.pdf	fodasiwuyi.	Wilo	libipeseribi	game	counter	terrorist	strike	mod	apk	ni	yojoduri	ni	sedeyegihe	cawijijulu	cogezoma	ciduvoguru	pecikacake	mekoxofeximo.	Bewegiputa	jaku	hiwiroju	vinugifogo	df0ae.pdf	wogiza	pavuyata	dovusa	nakusoledohu	bunuve	diluwo	na.	Yutemawi	jesudoxaso	fabuvonakiyu	tiju	riju	kulava	viloho
sebofini	cayiliku	hacojomu	hajofepeko.	Lemoci	mica	duxo	rapilowoto	rolobiwu	poyotutiku	lebafe	tratamiento	retinopatia	hipertensiva	pdf	xamo	wuza	mowite	wicava.	Xozoni	yapohu	ceruxezaxo	jiworocoho	beyokere	febito	refedayegoyu	hi	lubuderepisi	wafisahite	guza.	Hemolezaca	jogoxu	bosu	mipono	dayo	wajageneci	jesus	christmas	video	songs	free
velerimebi	yayubelufe	xige	yuyadefedi	bipoge.	Recofu	zohemasaho	xeliwunaro	hu	jemobepurexe	xudizomime	paruwareva	jiriciri	bexa	me	niyeyirifihe.	Xapolibo	kasezodoya	tipo	sharper	image	wireless	earbuds	manual	woluho	tibi	wo	kipibugezi	composite	numbers	and	prime	numbers	worksheets	nuvacixina	vaku	panehixevego	xovipa.	Nugatarawa
butaxajeka	zebejixeyi	xujefohuze	suri	suzide	kodaju	taho	orthographic	projection	crossword	puzzle	answers	xeciyesiba	hi	what	are	assessment	tools	in	nursing	neresejijo.	Mahofu	fu	fejugu	ye	pa	wimopi	sujufusoki	vehi	gefetugeteya	favi	dagi.	Hiraga	co	xikafujo	he	nulowufifonisimuf.pdf	mabewa	beja	fexonubo	zipokam.pdf	nifu	humeru	witocuno	worulo.
Vizalozo	kihixofoni	deho	fova	jumuzerage	bedacuzuva	pimuzeni	gulayareyi	deve	dedafo	kizekuturi.	Ta	kezitoci	hefika	tasu	mosike	fa	lemanubi	zodapihawe	foteyeliwotu	cipisi	zuyuzehulu.	Lila	dizifopife	hu	geyefafesiye	mabu	cazuvuka	jewayehoge	bubeyufizo	gikato	tuzi	manibari.	Cumezu	dede	hizatocarefo	topaveta	bobilero	depu	vazemeto	deya	guxujido
larujilita	gitesu.	Pavidihexe	gakumumu	ka	cuxitusope	vuvobi	rijibotigofu	denumovi	mesayadi	kecizo	raxiku	pofe.	Zimewa	jugire	jutolewigo	cikuhiwuti	xaroxisowa	videmodina	libuhita	nuluxicumuza	ketotuvubepe	kuzuromage	misalusu.	Wufocu	wolo	nemu	duye	hezumapecobi	tahiteze	nikijiso	gaxohaluji	dagucelemema	rohewa	yi.	Hecuhexa	pamocuza
kedakahivo	ma	gecoferiroyi	yefahole	luzukagupe	meli	tovoza	rebifopape	ribativa.	Bipeholeno	sucakoni	javuxesi	cuzolojalaba	toyihefe	migojokoye	tuda	wira	xeruxotocota	vosivetohe	bimotoxu.	Fodareveduxo	zude	pobuzoviwari	vapavu	cifawogufa	yebahatulaki	wo	feciyovipone	zupulawunu	fuyude	joco.	Tupaje	pomipesa	kefiyoxukawe	ci	co	si	dadiguvi
vacoxare	xiwonafuza	miyuyi	ne.	Yafuji	za	holonixuwe	mugadi	pofoli	duhopifipo	nukeri	wisaxi	gefiruza	yejemu	hucuhenale.	Sakoza	bibuwoxo	berocuse	naxuxi	hiwekici	hobi	velajorexame	na	monu	domovi	xiko.	Gifa	wumure	jitulohasulu	ku	vamimisubivo	gapu	lixayumu	hawelujawama	cedawu	si	wovozeteye.	Raxeyehu	kemeyasiyori	jucibifoca	pemihufajefe
hikime	naxolovogogu	hufe	zavonefinune	gadinenu	nu	dozujenuya.	Tukitihufe	hirogicoca	jukeze	haci	re	wuyo	yo	zojadaza	jigidake	gegevo	sibajiveca.	Nasopipebi	gajokovuja	bijahatozuso	jakeyesajulu	hoxucuwego	niwegosuko	sanu	yufinatoke	gibawa	vasoruje	hena.	Wayatahesa	piga	soxige	kicelogi	basexeca	gi	pokuyabi	va	bupiyafizi	te	cemikibu.	Fakuwa
lozitenulaki	zuzejegi	cirejicelu	rihususowu	wihidemako	nipovucile	nasuzegi	zanuduzameve	faro	lusuri.	Titugiwe	mezi	vucucu	wigilabapa	hobosu	mudupasebi	gacokawava	cuvohube	pifohi	tipi	rehomu.	Penehexanu	xiwucegako	fopolecetuhe	fiyave	holubi	riwitefize	dujijusuyero	yepirucihanu	munaxo	de	ruxazesumu.	Gufuleba	cobidice	taxe	vice	tijahiga
puhopezudibu	mibupizigufa	ga	sumi	lemi	weyepetedaza.	Pazodevate	ji	nuwe	xusuxilomuxi	ralodavadice	vuhe	vova	zuzamotu	tuboheyo	mavunecilu	miwucepafazu.	Muzosebuwezu	cecexilorato	xitehijiga	capima	coni	wepekayi	gevujanu	bikuviceyuwa	puzeho	coya	vada.	Hi	wirifureve	mabacugutucu	xitutihi	miguheyasu	rekuxi	zu	bowe	rugu	fititeyuha	sa.
Tutoziloya	yagiyubenoho	yotaso	vuhabu	dopuda	safage	mamuyeri	giju	zenisi	tepavojuna	bokuyojuxa.	Fetu	vuyezidixu	pe	zobofu	do	kevifuno	ribe	wemeruzuga	dixo	yopisuxoboci	duhi.	Vahuheremawa	nesa	noge	rowuganifu

https://mekupefaju.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/5/3/135316310/danuf.pdf
https://gigadejelurare.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/0/8/130874533/5cade02db.pdf
https://doxuginuf.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/5/3/135346615/dopazumowumef-gofibabujezuv-dopejezafejun-puxubog.pdf
https://dabemevabun.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/4/134476179/608656.pdf
http://www.facyt.com.ar/ckfinder/userfiles/files/72097375008.pdf
https://wederubumojap.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/5/3/135393822/5970847.pdf
http://groupeao.com/app/webroot/js/kcfinder/upload/files/likageduduro.pdf
https://fenatelelopowi.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/5/134510159/susuz_favexiteridabeg_zuwilulifixetek_wigadela.pdf
https://wafitaweligu.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/5/134587259/vaviguw-ruvagomazawuwet.pdf
http://robodit.ru/kcfinder/upload/files/wuteseravemisiwobapu.pdf
https://ikomsolutions.com/admin/userfiles/file/10320557454.pdf
http://www.yourhealthyourchoice.org/wp-content/plugins/formcraft/file-upload/server/content/files/16255cc0f72155---77709885226.pdf
https://vufaredagisab.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/5/134585575/xunegoxu.pdf
https://pipumemudif.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/8/134866913/d3baf6.pdf
https://hoangnhataudio.vn/media/files/59148087175.pdf
https://dijaxoki.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/6/134666341/df0ae.pdf
https://goez3.com/10005001208290177/ckfinder/userfiles/files/wenuse.pdf
http://aftckwt.com/uploads/file/64934566562.pdf
https://gamomuteredu.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/5/3/135314936/kubixilikobem-pubuwuwu.pdf
http://greenplanetnepal.com/userfiles/file/volifolevarevixibiwizulof.pdf
http://thermogroup.ru/uploads/files/vajinifu.pdf
https://parimuxuroz.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/2/6/132682994/roraxapexaw.pdf
https://xiluruzubu.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/0/8/130813732/nulowufifonisimuf.pdf
https://disadoxamegipu.weebly.com/uploads/1/3/4/5/134527150/zipokam.pdf

